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State of Rhode Island 

Department of Administration / Division of Purchases 

One Capitol Hill, Providence, Rhode Island 02908-5855 

Tel: (401) 574-8100   Fax: (401) 574-8387 

 

March 3, 2016 
 

ADDENDUM # 3 
  

RFP: # 7550232 

 

Title: Hospital Physician/APRN Recruitment Contractor 

 

 

Bid Closing Date & Time: March 17, 2016 at 10:00 am (Eastern Time)  
      

      

 
 

Notice to Vendors:  

 
 

 

ATTACHED ARE VENDOR QUESTIONS WITH STATE RESPONSES.  

NO FURTHER QUESTIONS WILL BE ANSWERED. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

David J. Francis 

Interdepartmental Project Manager 
 
Interested parties should monitor this website, on a regular basis, for any additional information that may be 

posted. 
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RFP #7550232 
 

Hospital Physician/APRN Recruitment Contractor 
Vendor Questions and State Responses Thereto  

 
 
Question 1:      Can you please provide the current incumbent vendors providing Hospital 
Physician/APRN Recruitment Contractor Services? 
 
State Response to Question 1:  ESH does not have an incumbent vendor providing 
Hospital Physician/APRN recruitment services.  ESH currently uses two vendors, Adil 
Business Systems, Inc., and Medop Behavioral Health Associates of RI, for temporary 
contractor services at ESH.  Neither vendor is providing recruiting services.   
 
 
Question 2:   Can you please provide the current incumbent hourly bill rates and/or 
PERM Fees associated for Hospital Physician/APRN Recruitment Contractor Services? 
 
State Response to Question 2:  There is no incumbent recruitment Vendor in use by ESH 
and thus no PERM fees or hourly bill rates established.  Adil has a master price 
agreement (MPA -393) with the State available for review on the State of Rhode Island 
purchasing web site.  ESH has contracted temporary service rates for a Psychiatrist @ 
$200.00/hour and for a Nurse Practitioner @ $135.00/hour.   
 
 
Question 3: What was the total annual expenditure of the current contract in 2014 and 
2015? 

State Response to Question 3:  ESH has not used outside recruiting contractors in the past 
to fulfill its staffing needs.  ESH expended approximately $3,278,956 in FY 2014 and 
$3,383,924 in FY 2015 for contracted medical personnel. 
 
 
 
Question 4:  When will the Q&As for RFP# 7550232 be published? 
 
State Response to Question 4: The State has up to five days prior to the opening date and 
time to post addenda and will make every effort to post responses to questions posed at 
the earliest date possible. Please visit our website regularly as the Division of Purchases 
will not be notifying by mail of any such addenda.  It is the vendors’ responsibility to 
check and download addenda. 
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Question 5: What facilities will vendors recruit for, if awarded? 
 
State Response to Question 5:  ESH has two campuses, one located in Cranston and the 
other in Burrillville.  Psychiatry services are principally performed at the Cranston 
campus in the Adolf Meyer, Regan and Pinel Buildings and it is expected that most 
positions will therefore be for the Cranston campus. Medical doctors may also be needed 
and recruited for and they will be placed at the Burrillville campus. 

 
 
 

Question 6: How many recruited permanent placement positions for physicians and 
APRNs have been filled at these facilities since January 1, 2015? 
 
State Response to Question 6:  Since January 1, 2015 one psychiatrist has been hired and 
based on his availability he has a part-time/20 hours per week position. 

 
 
 

Question 7: How many and what job titles are you now recruiting at these facilities? 
 
State Response to Question 7:  ESH has a current demand for physicians licensed in 
Psychiatry and Advanced Practice Registered Nurses with a clinical nurse specialty in 
Psychiatry. We also expect to recruit a medical doctor with a specialty in internal 
medicine, family practice or psychiatry over the coming year. 

 
 
 

Question 8:      How many and what job titles do you expect to recruit in the first term of 
the awarded contract? 
 

State Response to Question 8:  ESH had a current demand for physicians licensed in 
Psychiatry and Advanced Practice Registered Nurses with a clinical nurse specialty in 
Psychiatry and we seek to fill these positions as quickly as possible. ESH has four (4) full 
time positions open in psychiatry. We also expect to recruit a medical doctor with a 
specialty in internal medicine, family practice or psychiatry over the coming year. 

 
 

 
Question 9:   Section I, item 11. Are Addendums to be included in our response? 
 
State Response to Question 9: Addendums I & II were filed in connection with this RFP.   
Included in Addendum I were amended Attachments B1 & B2 provided as guidance and 
recommended for vendor use with the cost proposal submissions.  Vendors should refer 
to Section V, Cost Proposal and provide a detailed budget and budget narrative as 
directed by the RFP and include any Addendum Attachments used in Vendor’s Proposal. 
 

                         
 



 

4 
 

Question 10: Section I, item 15.  Vendor will not create, receive, maintain or transmit 
HIPAA protected health information as part of the permanent placement and recruitment 
services contemplated by this RFP.  Will the business associate agreement included as 
Attachment D be a requirement for this RFP? 
 
State Response to Question 10: Although Vendor will likely not create, receive, maintain 
or transmit HIPAA protected health information under this contract financial resources 
used in the operation of the ESH are partially derived from federal funding therefore, 
execution of the Business Associate Agreement will be a required part of the contract. 
The BAA provides protection for both parties should there be an incidental exchange of 
PHI. 
 
 
 
Question 11:   Section I, item 16.  Is this provision applicable to the permanent 
placement and recruitment services contemplated by the RFP?  If so, how does this apply 
to Vendor?  If it is not applicable, will the Department agree to remove this provision 
from the RFP? 
 
State Response to Question 11:  This provision is not applicable to vendors providing 
placement and recruitment services contemplated by the RFP and thus certification as an 
“eligible entity” would not necessarily be required. 
 
 
 
Question 12: Section III, third paragraph.  What is expected by “extensive out-
sourcing”?  Is this referring to advertising the open positions? 
 
State Response to Question 12:  Vendors will be evaluated based on the level of effort 
they employ in their search for qualified candidates in the recruitment process.  
Demonstration of the level of out-sourcing efforts would include outreach, marketing, 
networking and advertising for viable candidates such as to residency programs and at 
conferences and will be considered as part of the State’s evaluation of Vendors.   
 
A table outlining expectations for Tasks/Deliverables has been provided in the RFP 
within section III, at or about page 8. 

 
 
 

Question 13: Section III, third paragraph.  What is expected by “screening and vetting” 
of candidates?  Vendor can screen candidates for the required qualifications; however, 
screening is based on representations made by the candidates to Vendor.  Vendor does 
not perform primary source verifications of candidate credentials.  Is this acceptable to 
the Department? 
 
  
State Response to Question 13:  This is acceptable to the Department.  Vendor will be 
expected to initially screen candidates based on criteria established in job descriptions.  
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The Department does not expect Vendor to perform verification of qualifications that 
would normally be part of credentialing or licensing.   

 
 

 
Question 14: Section III, third paragraph. What is expected by “assistance with hiring”? 
 
State Response to Question 14:  Vendor will meet with hospital management (may be by 
means of telephonic communications and conference calling) to identify specific 
personnel needs, time frames, search objectives and candidate characteristics. Vendor 
will identify time frames and provide feedback to ESH as to best practices and 
expectations for hospital recruitment on an annualized basis and to assist the hospital 
with forecasting lead times for vacancies.  Vendor will render assistance to the 
Department with information as to market-based compensation studies for the relevant 
positions being filled to assist the Department with maintaining an ability to remain 
competitive for necessary professionals. 
 
Vendor would facilitate and assist with candidate interview arrangements, meetings and 
engage in ongoing interaction throughout the recruitment and selection process with 
members of the ESH management. Vendor would assist with candidate communications, 
scheduling and logistics of interviews.  
 
Vendor will assist with initial screening of candidates based on criteria established in job 
descriptions.  Vendor will provide the Department with information to assist the 
Department with making a decision relative to the candidates presented.  
 
 
Question 15:      Section III, Page 8.  Licensure checks performed by Vendor are 
performed on-line only (not primary source).  Vendor does not perform professional 
discipline checks, background checks or other credentialing functions on candidates. 
Screening performed by Vendor for the required qualifications is based on 
representations made by the candidate.  Is this acceptable? 

State Response to Question 15:  Vendor proposal is acceptable to the State.  

 

 

Question 16:  Section III, Page 8.  Vendor can agree to assist with interview 
arrangements.  However, Vendor will not agree to prepare questions and protocols for 
interviews.  Is this acceptable? 
  

State Response to Question 16:  Vendor proposal is acceptable to the State.  The State 
recognizes that vendors will have limitations at to their respective services.  It is 
suggested that Vendor identify with its proposal any and all limitations and functions 
Vendor is unable or not willing to perform as part of the recruitment process.  Proposals 
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will be evaluated and scored based on the totality of the services provided and the level of 
effort they employ to fulfil the requirements of the RFP.   

 
 
 
Question 17: Section III, Page 8.  What is expected by “assist in finalizing the terms and 
conditions of employment and transition plans?”  Vendor will not agree to be involved in 
the negotiation of the contract or terms and conditions of employment between the 
Department and the candidate. 
 
State Response to Question 17:  The Department would generally expect Vendor to be 
available for guidance and consultation, on an as needed basis.  Vendors, however, would 
not be involved in the negotiation of contracts or terms and conditions of employment 
between the Department and candidates.  Decisions regarding the selection of position 
finalists and the designation of the new hires, to include all decisions and determinations 
as to employment terms and compensation of individual candidates by the State will rests 
solely with the State.   
 
 
Question 18:   Section IV, second bullet page 10. Are bios of key staff acceptable 
instead of full resumes? 
 
State Response to Question 18:  Bios of key staff is acceptable to the State, to the extent 
resumes can be provided they are preferred. 
 
 
Question 19: Section VIII, Computers, Office Space and Equipment.  Are these sections 
applicable to this RFP?  Does the Department expect that Vendor will have staff on-site 
at the hospital? 
   
State Response to Question 19:  The provisions of section VIII are applicable to this RFP.  
There is no expectation or requirement that Vendor have staff on site at the hospital.  
There is an expectation that vendor will be available, as needed, to hospital management 
to identify specific personnel needs, time frames, search objectives and candidate 
characteristics.  This can be accomplished by means of telecommunications and 
conference calls. 
 

 
Question 20: Section VIII, insurance.  The insurance provided by Contractor is 
“Personnel Consultants Errors and Omissions Insurance” Is this acceptable?  Will the 
Department agree to remove the reference to “subcontractors” in the fourth line if Vendor 
will not be utilizing subcontractors? 

 
State Response to Question 20:   Personnel Consultants Errors and Omissions Insurance 
is acceptable to the State.  The State is willing to remove the subcontractor provision with 
none will be utilized.  
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Question 21: General Terms and Conditions, section 22.  Vendor will use best efforts to 
fill search requests, but does not guarantee its ability to do so.  Does Vendor’s failure to 
fill a requested search constitute a failure or non-performance as described by this 
section? 
   
State Response to Question 21:  Failure to fill search requests would not constitute a 
breach of the agreement in and of itself.  The State is cognizant that there can be no 
guarantee as to filling search requests.  Vendor’s obligation is to perform in good faith, 
using best efforts in accordance with industry best practices and standards.  In recognition 
of the inability to make such guarantee, Vendor fees should be based in part or in whole 
on a hiring contingency. 

 
 

 
Question 22:    General Terms and Conditions, Section 31.  Are the insurance 
requirements set forth in this section applicable to the RFP?  The applicable insurance 
furnished by Vendor is Personnel Consultants Errors and Omissions Insurance with limits 
of $1,000,000 per incident and $1,000,000 in the aggregate.  Is this acceptable in lieu of 
the requirements of this section 31? 
  
State Response to Question 22:  Personnel Consultants Errors and Omissions in the stated 
amount is sufficient to meet the requirements of section 31. 

 

Question 23:   General Terms and Conditions, Section 34. Vendor will use best efforts to 
fill search requests, but does not guarantee its ability to do so.  Does Vendor’s failure to 
fill a requested search constitute a failure, breach or non-performance as described by this 
section? 
 
State Response to Question 23:  (Duplicate Question to Number 21) Failure to fill search 
requests would not constitute a breach of the agreement in and of itself.  The State is 
cognizant that there is no guarantee as to filling search requests.  Vendor’s obligation is 
to perform in good faith, using best efforts in accordance with industry best practices and 
standards.  In recognition of the inability to make such guarantee, Vendor fees should be 
based in part or in whole on a hiring contingency. 
 

 
 
Question 24: General Terms and Conditions, Section 35.a.  Is the indemnity provision 
negotiable?  Specifically, is the Department agreeable to adding the following:  “It is 
understood and agreed to by the parties that the foregoing duty to save harmless is 
expressly limited to the duties outlined in the contract and does not include a duty on the 
part of Contractor to save harmless the State, its agents and employees from and against 
any liability which may be brought or levied against the State as a result of or in 
connection with any act or omission of a candidate once candidate begins work with the 
State.  The decision to hire a candidate presented for consideration by Contractor shall 
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exclusively be the State’s and Contractor shall bear no liability for the State’s hiring 
decision.” 
 
State Response to Question 24:  It is generally understood that there will be negotiation 
as to the terms of contract requirements and provisions.  This process will be undertaken 
following the RFP process.    The requested modification to the contract by Vendor 
appears reasonable and the Department is willing to consider adding the proposed 
language during contract negotiations in the event of a successful bid by Vendor. 
 
 
 
Question 25:   Is the Department agreeable to adding the following to the agreement 
resulting from this RFP:   

a. “Candidates presented by Vendor shall be conclusively presumed to have 
been introduced to Department by Vendor unless Department notifies 
Vendor in writing within one (1) business day of initial presentation that a 
Candidate is already known to Department. For purposes of this 
Agreement, “already known” shall be limited to circumstances where a 
Candidate, in the six (6) months preceding Vendor’s presentation, has 
either been presented to Department by another staffing or recruitment 
company or has made independent application to work for Department. 

b. In the event any Candidate presented by Vendor to Department accepts 
Work (as defined below) with any third party introduced to Candidate by 
Department, when the introduction has been made for the purpose of 
enabling the third party to recruit Candidate or third party is an entity of 
which Department is a department, division, subsidiary or affiliate, then 
payment of a fee shall be owed to Vendor by Department for the referral 
in the amount of $______________ (each, a “Referral Fee”). The Referral 
Fee is intended to compensate Vendor for its Services in cases where a 
Fee for the hired Candidate has not otherwise been paid. As used herein, 
“Work” shall mean an offer to work, said offer being either verbal or 
written, on a part or full time basis, temporary or permanent, as an 
employee or independent contractor. 

 
State Response to Question 25: It is generally understood that there will be negotiation as 
to the terms of contract requirements and provisions.  This process will be undertaken 
following the RFP process.    The requested modification to the contract by Vendor 
appears reasonable and the Department is willing to consider adding the proposed 
language during contract negotiations in the event of a successful bid by Vendor. 
 
 
 


